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Chief Pfeifer,  

In accordance with Article 33 E of the 1995 Agreement between the U.S. Immigration and Naturalization Service and National Border Patrol Council, informing you that the National Border Patrol Council (NBPC) Local 2266 is presenting you with a Step II grievance. This grievance is on behalf of the Swanton Sector Canine Unit, and Local 2266.  A Step 1 grievance was initiated on April 10, 2013. On April 12, 2013 SOS Furnia failed to provide any reparations to the Swanton Sector Canine Unit bargaining member’s and Local 2266’s grievance. 

On April 20, 2013 Local 2266 requested information from the Agency concerning these matters.  To this date, the Union has not received either a notice or any information in regards to the Union’s request for information. The applicable Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) violations include but are not limited to, 

1.   Violation of Article 2

Article 2 of the CBA states, in part:

B. Should any conflict arise in the administration of this Agreement between the terms of this Agreement and any government-wide or agency rule or regulation such as the Federal Personnel Manual or Department of Justice Orders, Policy Letter, Manuals (other than a rule or regulation implementing 5USC2302), issued after the effective date of this Agreement, the terms of this Agreement will supersede and govern.

C. In any conflict between the terms of this Agreement and any provisions of Service Orders. Policy Letters, Manuals, etc., regardless of date of issuance, the terms of the agreement will govern.

D. The requirements of this article shall apply to all understandings or agreements between the parties.

The National Canine Policy was a result of negotiations between the Agency and the NBPC. As such, it became an agreement and understanding of the parties pursuant to Article 2 of the CBA. 

Chief Patrol Agent (CPA) Pfeifer and Special Operations Supervisor/Canine Coordinator (SOS) Furnia violated Article 2 by unilaterally implementing a policy and or guideline that was in direct conflict of the nationally negotiated Canine Policy. 

SOS Furnia acknowledged in the Step 1 grievance that on September 26, 2012 and on April 2, 2013 he implemented a policy to Swanton Sector Canine Teams that was not in accordance to the national Canine Policy. SOS Furnia was informed by the Union that neither Swanton Sector Canine Teams nor the Union knew of these policy changes. SOS Furnia made no attempt to correct the situation and failed to abide by Article 2 of the CBA and revert to the national Canine policy.

2.   Violation of Article 3A

Article 3A, section (A) of the CBA states, in pertinent part:
The parties recognize that from time to time during the life of the agreement, the need will arise requiring the change of existing Service regulation covering personnel policies, practices, and/or working conditions not covered by this agreement. The Service shall present the changes it wishes to make to existing rules, regulations, and existing practices to the Union…

On September 8, 2010 Chief Patrol Agent Michael J. Fisher issued a memorandum implementing the negotiated “National Canine Policy” to all Chief Patrol Agents and Division Chiefs. The implementing memorandum provides that the policy “is effective immediately” and that the “Chief Patrol Agents will ensure dissemination and compliance within their sectors.”   As noted above, Article 3A of the CBA provides that “the Service shall present the changes it wishes to make to existing rules, regulations and existing practices to the Union.”  On April 2, 2013 CPA Pfeifer issued a memorandum under the name “Swanton Sector Canine Overtime Guidance” to the all sector Patrol Agents in Charge (PAIC) and Swanton Sector Canine Teams. CPA Pfeifer’s memorandum also refers to an additional issued memorandum from SOS Furnia to sector PAIC’s and Swanton Sector Canine Teams. These two memorandums contain a non-negotiated and unilaterally implemented, policy and or guideline under the name “Swanton Sector Canine Overtime Guidance.” 

At no time between the implementation of the negotiated National Canine Policy on September 8, 2010, and the issuance of the memorandum’s dated April 2, 2013 by CPA Pfeifer and SOS Furnia did the agency seek to negotiate any supplemental policy or procedure regarding canine kenneling. The Agency failed to notify the Union as required by Article 3A.

3. Violation of Article 31

 Article 31 of the CBA states, in part: 

A. The Union shall be given the opportunity to be represented at any formal discussion

between one or more representatives of the Service and one or more employees in the unit or their representatives concerning any grievance or any personnel policy or practices or other general conditions of employment.

At no time was the Union given an opportunity to be represented at the September 26, 2012 meeting between SOS Furnia and Swanton Sector Canine instructors.  SOS Furnia claims during that meeting he instructed Swanton Sector Canine Teams on new personnel policy, practice and other general conditions of employment.  In doing so, he did not invite or allow the Union an opportunity to be present at that formal discussion.

4. Violation of Article 35

Article 35 of the CBA states, in part:

A. AFGE Locals designated by the Union shall be allowed to negotiate a supplemental agreement covering all eligible employees in the Sector.  It is understood there will be only one supplemental agreement per Sector.

On April 2, 2013 CPA Pfeifer and SOS Furnia both issued memorandums under the name “Swanton Sector Canine Overtime Guidance.” These memorandums are supplemental to the nationally negotiated Canine Policy and not an agreement within the Local 2266 and Swanton Sector’s Article 35 supplemental agreement. CPA Pfeifer and SOS Furnia violated article 35 by unilaterally implementing a non-negotiated supplemental agreement.

5.   Violation of Negotiated National Canine Policy

2. Policy
2.2 Local and Sector standard operating procedures are a derivative of this policy and will not conflict with the statements herein.

On April 02, 2013 CPA Pfeifer and SOS Furnia issued a memorandum implementing the Swanton Sector Overtime Guidance. This local/sector guideline did in fact conflict with Section 6.1 of the National Canine Policy.

5.3 Sector Canine Coordinator

(e) Provide training materials and equipment necessary to accomplish the canine mission.

At no time between the September 26, 2012 meeting and the April 2, 2013 “Swanton Sector Canine Overtime Guidance” memorandum was any directive, policy or guideline provided to the Swanton sector canine handlers for their records. 

6.1 Kenneling 

Whenever practicable, canines shall be kenneled with their handlers. However, BP canines may be kenneled away from their handlers where essential (e.g., health reasons, when the handler is traveling without the canine, or because the handler is close to the statutory overtime pay limit).

On April 2, 2013 CPA Pfeifer and SOS Furnia issued memorandums implementing the Swanton Sector Canine Overtime Guidance. These guidelines refer to how canines are to be kenneled which contradicts the national Canine Policy.  SOS Furnia indicated that he unilaterally implemented a guideline that would force a handler to kennel their canine, even if the handler was not close to the statutory overtime pay limit. This restrictive guideline also limited the amount of suffer and permit a handler could average per pay period for the 2013 fiscal earning period, resulting in increased commercial kenneling away from the handler. 

6.7 Separation

6.7.1

Documented incidents of unprofessional behavior or other circumstances that cause the canine coordinator or sector program manager to question the ability of an employee to satisfactorily perform his or her canine handler duties may be grounds for separation from the canine program. The coordinator and program manager will confer with the National canine program manager on the final disposition of the team.  

6.7.6

Any decision to involuntarily release an employee from the canine program shall be documented and explained to the employee. Such release, by itself, will not have an adverse effect upon the employee’s career. 

6.7.8

Canine teams may not be separated for punitive or other illegitimate reasons. Teams may be separated for valid reasons such as violations of policies and law, or failure to ensure the safety of the canine, the public, and/or the handler’s family.

Section 5 of the National Canine Policy makes it clear that while canine members will be held to the same standards of conduct as regular Border Patrol Agents, the responsibilities of canine members are specified in the negotiated National Canine Policy. The National Policy outlines the grounds for removal from the canine program, the procedure for removal and the responsibilities of canine handlers. The National Canine Policy was negotiated to ensure consistency between Border Patrol Sectors, Stations as well as management and handlers. 

In this case Section 6.7.1 requires documented incidents of unprofessional behavior or other circumstances that cause the Canine Coordinator or Sector program manager to question the ability of an employee to satisfactorily perform his or her canine duties. This situation may lead to the separation from the canine program. At no time did the agency provide canine handlers any documentation outlining unprofessional behavior or other circumstances. 

Due to the inconsistent treatment of all alleged violations of the September 26, 2012 unilaterally, non-negotiated and undocumented implementation of changes to the canine policy, the Agency violated 6.7.8.  Canine Teams were separated for either punitive or other illegitimate reasons.

Remedy and Corrective Action Desired

 The union requests the Agency:

1) Abide by the CBA;

2) Cease and desist from implementing policies and/or procedures which concern mandatory subjects of bargaining without first negotiating such changes with the Union and providing the Union with the requisite notice under section 3A of the CBA;

3) Abide by the negotiated National Canine Policy;

4) Cease and desist from applying or enforcing the “Sector Canine Overtime Guidance” and any other policies or procedures applicable to bargaining unit members assigned to the canine program which concern a mandatory subject of bargaining and were not negotiated by the Union;

5) Reinstate any Swanton Sector canine team member who suffered any type of action in regards to the “Swanton Sector Canine Overtime Guidance”

6) Remove any counseling, yellow sheets, or any other negative correspondence from any Swanton Sector Canine Team’s file, as a result of the “Swanton Sector Canine Overtime Guidance” 

7) Upon reinstatement to the Canine program, provide the affected team members with the option of completing any training required for initial, or continued certification, locally or at one of the two Canine facilities;

8) Post in a conspicuous place, for 90 days, at each station and at the sector canine office, a notice stating that the agency violated the negotiated National Canine Policy and the CBA and that it will cease and desist from committing future violations;

9) Back pay for all affected Swanton Sector Canine Handler’s for Suffer and Permit compensation, in which handlers were unable to claim due to the enactment the “Swanton Sector Canine Overtime Guidance.”

Sincerely,

Sean P. Walsh                                                                              

Chief Steward
AFGE/NBPC

Local #2266
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